
United Nations 

GENERAL Ui·~ U'6R~Rl 
ASSEMBLY ~\)t.C 1 '3\91'·: 
THIRTY-11RST SESSION .'- C,'l .\U'1'\ 

Co. \,.L.~ I
,. ! 

\)~i .. ; _jJ • Official Records* 

SPECIAL POLI~CAL COMMITTEE 
34th meeting 

held on 
Wednesday, 8 Deceaber 1976 

at 10.30 a.a. 
New York 

SUMMARY RECORD OF 'rilE 34th MD'l'DIG 

·Chairman: Mr. GREGORIADES (Greece} 

COI'!'Etl•ts 

AGDDA ITEM 54: COMPREHE!ISIVE REVIEW OP THE WHOLE QUES'fiOlf OF PEACE-KEEPIBG OPERA'I'IOlfS 
Ilf ALL 'l'B'IIR ASPEC'l'S: REPORT OF THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE 01' PJ:ACE-KEEPI!G OPERA~OlfS 
(~inued} 

• This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be incorporated in a copy of 
the record and should be sent within one week of the date of publication to the Chief, 
Official Records Editing Section, room LX-2332. 

Correc<ions will be issued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fascicle for 
each Committee 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/SPC/31/SR. 34 
10 December 1976 

ORIGINAL: EIGLISH 

I . .. 



A/SPC/3l/SR.34 
English 

2 

AGE1\fDA ITLivi 54: COHPREHBN3IVE RiVIE\'! OF' 'l'H:C \-THOL:C QUESTION OF' PEACE-K:::..:EPING 
OP:6RATIOiJS ET ALL 'l'IIt;IR AS?LCTS: R:LPOR'l' OF THE SPECIAL Cm.1lVIIT'l':CE ON PEACI>KE:C?ING 
OPBRATI01~S (A/31/ ) (continued) 

l. ~,irs._ RJ\I'l~ (HepaJ ) sai :l that 
contributions of the Unite i nations 
preservi11g international p::ace and security. 

operations ·uere amone: the maln 
ter:sion in areas of conflict and 

2. its resolution 200) (XIX), the General Assembly had established a Special 
Cor:nni ttee to make a compre1ensi ve review of the >·rhole question of 
operations. Since then, t:1e General had renewed each year the Cornnittee 1 s 
mandate to consider that q1estion vith a view to establishing 
for future peace··k oJerations. So far, the Committee had not completed its 
task and in its resolution 3457 (XXX) the General Ass had urged it to renew its 
efforts in ti1at direction. It was now to note from the report on the 
110rk of the Corm11ittee for :he year (A/31/337) that some progress had been made. 
Thus, t:1e Uorking Group of the Special Con<J:uittee had adopteci ne\·l formulas for the 
title, introduction and ar~icles 1._. paragraph 2, and 2, 3 and 4 of the guidelines. 

3. Although the Security Council had primary responsibility for maintaining 
international peace and se·~urity > the in.portance of General Assembly initiatives in 
times of crisis should not be minimized. In many instances where the Security 
Council had failed to act -)ecause of disagreement anong the major Powers, the 
General Assembly had taken valuable initiatives to 1:1aintain peace ancl security. 
The General Assembly must '~ontinue to play an effective role in peace--keeping, 
ln accordance with Article 10 of the Charter, whenever the Security Council failed 
to act. 

4. Genuine understanding an<i agreement among t:ne or Powers -,.rere vital to the 
future of United Nations operations and also to the smooth 
functioning of United Nati•ms activities in general. Ler delegation therefore 

to those Powers to shovi co--OI)eration and understanding whenever the 
United :::rations 1v2w faced '"~th the question of s forces to 
troubled areas. 

5. 'I'he importance which her country attachec.i to pe operations had been 
manifested by the particip.1tion of a e continc;ent lll the United ations 

Force in 1974. had also participated in some of the seninars on 
operations o ~e;anized the International Peace Academy, 

6. The financing of peac(::·~keepine; had been a major concern of 
the international comn~unit:r. The 1965 consensus on voluntary contributions had 
been a temporary solution ·lesi to deal >-lith the press of that 

d, anc.i her delegation believe<i that all J.ien•ber States were collectively 
responsible for the financ of pe It continued to 
support ions for cr.;at ing United fund, since that 
would unquestionably solve SOLie of the the Orc;anization in tha~~ 
connexion. 

1. In accordance with Ge:1eral Assembly resolution 3457 (XXX), the Special 
CoJ1Imi ttee bad sought the vi.ews of its members and of troop--contributing countries 

I ... 



A/3PC/31/SR.34 
:=:nclish 
Page 3 

( J.IIrs. _ _Bana, IJ epal) 

vitl regard to the practical impleElentation of peace-l~eeping operations. In the 
vie-v. of her delegation, the Biddle Last peace--keeping operations could serve as 
practical experience for future operations. Her delee;ation also shared the views 
expressed by some States regarding the training of military personnel participating 
in 1 eace--l;:eeping operations. The effectiveness of those operations depended 
lar~:;ely on the efficient performance of military personnel in the field. The 
estE.blishment of stand--by forces was no less important in times of urgent 
necessity. 

8. Her delegation attached great importance to the worl" being done by the Special 
CmaD·i ttee and vras in favour of extending the Committee's mandate in the hoiJe that it 
vrould make every effort, as in the past year, to establish agreed guidelines for 
United l~ations peace--lceepine; operations at the earliest possible date. 

9. ug-_ •. !Y~_J:_f,~OV (Union of Soviet Socialist Re::_Jublics) noted that there still 
rema.ined sm1e dane,erous sources of conflict threatenine; international peace anc:l 
sect..rity despite over-all progress in achieving detente and political solutions to 
prol·leElS. rche United nations should therefore increase its role in strengthenine; 
international peace and security, in particular by working out agreed guidelines 
for United Hations peace-1~eeping operations in strict conformity uith the Charter. 
In that connexion) he noted the Soviet proposal for the conclusion of a world treaty 
on the non--use of force in international relations, >rhich had met with the approval 
of t~1e raajority of States Lembers of the United 1~ations and had been adopted by the 
GenE_ral Assembly. There vras a clear organic link between that Soviet initiative, 
the problem of stren,;thening international security anr~- practical measures aimed at 
IJres ervine; interne.tional peace and security, such as the United J\fations peace-
tcee1.ing operations. Such operations, if they vrere carried out in strict conformity 
vri tl the C~1arter, could and shoulcl be a pert of (";eneraJ measures to strengthen 
intErnational peace and security. 

10. Under the Charter, the Security Council was the only body authorized to 
undertake measures to maintain international peace. Only the Council could decide 
on the formation, use, composition, functioning and financing of United rJations 
peace--l~eepinc, forces. Strict observance of the provisions of the Charter in that 
reg~.rd constituted a guarantee against the misuse of force under the United lllations 
flae and against the possibility of using United Nations forces in the narrmr 
intErests of certain groups of States and agai.nst the interests of countries 
recEiving such forces. 

11. lie noted that the Horl:ing Group of the Special ConuJtittee on Peace--keeping 
Operations had achieved a measure of pro(";ress in pre:parinc, clraft formulas for the 
title) introduction and a number of articles of agreed guidelines for United Nations 
peace--keeping operations. llis delegation wished. to stress the particular 
im;x>rtance of article 1> \vllich dealt with the role of the Security Council ln 
conrexion with such operations. Article 4, concerning the committee to be 
estc.blished u~1der Article 29 of tlle Che.rter in order to assist the Council ln the 
IJerfonnance of its peace--keeping functions) vas e:m encourac;ing ex&1lple of the 
IJroc;ress which could be c:.chieved through painstalcing efforts and negotiations. 
He ree;retted tha.t agreement had not been reached on all aspects of the matter, 
but it shoulcl be noted that the fault did not in any sense lie with his delegation. 

I ... 



A/S?C/31/SR.34 
English 
Page 4 

(Mr. 'l'ulinov, USSR) 

12. The task facing the Siecial Committee on Peace-keeping Operations and its 
\.Jorking Group was complex and of fundamental importance. His delegation was 
prepared to devote further efforts to achievinp agreement on the matter in 
conformity with the Charter. 

13. Mr~tiULLOY (Ireland) said that, despite 20 years of debate and negotiation 
on peace-keeping operations 5 the United Nations was still some distance away from 
the achievement of universally acceptable guidelines, either in relation to the 
operations or in relation to their financing. Indeed, the establishment of the 
Special Committee on Peace-keeping Operations see:rred to have prorrpted an unduly 
optimistic forecast. The Committee must not, however, allow itself to be 
discouraged by the lack of rrogress to date. Durin!'" the current year, there 
had been some grounds for rejoicing, since the Special Committee had been able to 
report, r:wi th regard to the text of the title, introduction and articles 1, 2, 3 
and 4, that new formulas representing a measure of agreement had been achieved';:, 
unfortunately, that did not apply to article 1, parae;raph 1, on which ''it l·ras not 
possible to reach such a measure of agreement:: (A/31/337, para. 6). His 
delegation noted that a greater degree of :.Jrogress had been achieved by the Special 
Committee in 1976 because, instead of rreetinr continuously on a one-meeting-per
month basis as in previous y-ears, it had concentrated. its i-TOrk into a single 
substantive session. 

14. Ireland had demonstrat::d its positive comJrdtn:ent to United Nations peace
keeping activities over the past 18 years, during which Irish officers had been 
assigned to several United \fations peace-·keeping forces. In one operation alone, 
the United Nations Operatio1 in the Conco (0!\!UC), 26 Irish soldiers haCi lost their 
lives, and Ireland had Sl'ff:;reo. casualties in other operations as well. Desnite 
those losses, Ireland's desi.re to continue its long association with peace-keepinf" 
operations remained unchang·~d. It therefore ree:retted that, for dorrcestic reasons, 
it had had to recall the Irish contingent from the United Nations E:r1erfency Force 
(UI'JEr') in t•1ay 1974. It was still comroitted to UNEF, even thourh it vTas not at 
present in a position to a full continfent, and Irish officers continued to 
serve the United Nations 1n the l'iliddle East and in Cyprus. 

15. In the introduction to his annual report on the i-rork of the Orp-anization, the 
Secretary-General had expre:>sed the view that soJ11e international nroblems were not 
soluble within a short tirr.e span and that, in such cases 5 ouiet diplomacy through 
the United Nations could so1retirres also avoid :t'J.ajor and. immediate dangers, thus 
contributing to the search :·or lastintt settlements. His delettation also agreed 
with the Secretary-General -~hat an improvement of the peace-l{eeninp and oeace
making capacity of the Unit<~d Nations should have the highest priority in its 
agenda and among the concerns of Governments (A/31/1/Add.l, pp. 9 and 11). 
Ireland believed that the Wl)rk of the Special Conmittee played an important role 
in that process, and it wou:Lc support the renewal of the Cowmi ttee' s mandate in 
the hope that it could regi:;ter greater progress in 1977. 

16. His delegation recoc:ni:~ed that it vras difficult to draft e-uiCielines for Un:lted 
Nations peace-keeping opera:; ions capable of covering every conceivable situaticn. 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 
Page 5 

(Mr. Mulloy, Ireland) 

It continued to believe that both the Security Council and the Secretary-General, 
working in close consultation with the parties concerned, must be left some 
measure of discretion in determining the type of operation required in any 
partieular situation, bearing in mind the framework established by the Charter 
and the obligation of Member States under Article 33. At the same time, the 
burden of maintaining peace was one that was collectively shared. His delegation 
firml;r held that the financing of peace-keeping operations should be governed by 
the p~c-inciple of collective financial responsibility. That was particularly so 
becau~>e those operations were an absolutely fundamental aspect of the work of the 
United Nations. His delegation had stated in 1975 that it regretted the fact 
that a number of Member States had refused to bear their assessed share of the 
costs of maintaining UNEF and the United Nations Disengagement Observer Force 
(UNDOF). It noted with alarm that the so-called "uncollectable" balance had been 
risinr<:; that situation further endangered the broad geographical base on which 
the Fl)rce was constituted, since delays in reimbursements to troop-contributing 
count:"ies made it even more difficult for smaller countries to contemplate 
parti ~ipation in such operations. 

17. Wotwithstanding those considerations, his delegation welcomed the agreement 
recen-~ly reached between the troop contributors and the Secretary-General on the 
reimb 1rsement of the usage factor for personal gear, clothing and equipment in 
the context of earlier agreements resarding the operation of UNEF and UNDOF. It 
was p-~rhaps characteristic of the United Nations system that arrangements of that 
natur'o could be concluded within the framework of existing agreements even though 
there w·ere as yet no comprehensive agreed guidelines for peace-keeping as a 
whole. There must be room for some deu;ree of concurrent development on both 
- ssue 3. In other words, the elaboration of the general guidelines should rr::flect, 
'1ere appropriate, progress in the day-to-day evolution of practices and p1 :cedents 

in reLation to specific peace-keeping operations. At the same time, it might seem 
unwis~~ to attempt to give selective effect to specific provisions of the 
guideLines while awaiting the completion of work on the guidelines as a whole. 
To do so would be to underestimate the complexity of peace-keeping operations in 
,a:ener3.l. 

18. 'rhe mounting of any new peace-keeping operation would demand infinite tact, 
patie 1ce and determination. It should be the aim of the Special Committee to 
facilitate that task by achieving a realistic frame,,rork within which to c 1 erate. 
To imrly, 11owever, that some principles were more applicable than others .-:as to 
cast ::ioubt on the efficacy of the guidelines as a whole. The Special Comn.ittee 
:rrc.ust then rore push the drafting of those guidelines to a successful conclusion 
in the shortest time possible. If it failed in that task, he wondered whether the 
international community would on some future occasion express appropriate 
understanding of the negotiating difficulties within the E.1pecial Committee or 
whether it would be more disposed to condemn as short-sit~hted the Committee's 
failure, after so many years, to reach agreement on a basic set of operating 
guidelines. The choice was that of the Special Political Committee, and, in 
supporting renewal_ of the Special Committee's mandate for yet another term, his 
delegation hoped that its members would be inspired by the plea made by 
Paul-Henri Spaak to his European colleagues when drcd'ting the Treaty of Rome: 
"Now:; :Jommes condamnes au succes H. 

I ... 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 

6 

19. Mr. IBRAHIM (Libyan ru~ab Republic) said that the fact that the United Nations 
had set up the Special Comnittee on Peace-keeping Operations showed at least tacit 
recognition that an imbalance existed in international relations because the 
principles which should govern those relations had been violated. That imbalance 
led to tensions, which in ;;urn led to armed conflicts in some areas. Respect for 
the principles in question would in itself provide a guarantee of peace. 

20. The establishment of peace implied a state of non-belligerency, but 
ncn-bellir:erency - for exanple, through the disengagement of forces - did not 
necessarily imply peace. Han-belligerency could, however, create an atmosphere 
which could eventually leact to peace and security, the maintenance of which was 
embodied in the Charter as the primary goal of the United Nations. Nations should 
try to ensure respect for those principles which led to peace, for if peace was 
not based on justice it waB a false peace containing the seeds of its own 
destruction. If justice was not based on equality, could not lead to peace,, 
and if equality was not baned on human rights and non-discrimination, it was only 
a semblance of equality. 

21. A glance at the world situation showed that many people continued to be 
subject to oppression and hrbitrary action. In the Hiddle East, an entire people 
had been evicted and dispersed and their land had been usurped by an artificially 
created entity based on the ideology- of zionism, which was essentially religious 
racism. Ever since that entity had been established in 1948, it had developed its 
expansionist designs to the point where it now occupied parts of the territory of 
three Arab States. Settlements were being established in those territories on 
the basis of a theory that the acquisition of that land was a sacred right of 
the Zionists. 

22. On the African contin<mt, South Africa continued to practise the most odious 
forms of racial discrimination and the people of Namibia and Zimbabwe remained 
under the yoke of colonial injustice and racist oppression. People in Asia and 
Latin America were also suffering under the scourge of colonialism and domination. 
Those were merely a few drc.matic examples of the political injustice existing in 
the world, which the UniteC. Nations had failed to remedy. 

23. The world could be se<;n as divided into a developed North and an undeveloped 
South, which had led to a Bort of class struggle in international relations. ~1he 
North was generally characterized by economic progress based on various 
ideologies, while the South was still languishing in poverty and misery. The 
resources of the South were being plundered to feed the machinery of the 
industrialized North, and the developing countries were losing their independence 
as a result of neo-colonialism, which had been created by military and other forms 
of "tied" assistance. Furthermore, an intellectual and cultural dependence on 
the industrial Powers was being established to the detriment of the cultural 
development of the develop:.ng countries. He warned the neo-colonialists of the 
coming wrath of the under-developed peoples when they realized why they were so 
poor. 

24. International relations could be seen as based on a principle of antagonism: 

/ .... 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 
Page 7 

(!Vir. Ibrahim~ Libyan Arab Republic) 

antagonism between the developed and the developing countries, and antagonism 
between the East and the West in the developed world. In addition, among the 
developing countries there was antagonism between the richer oil-produc countries 
and the others. The recent rapprochement, espec between East and West, would 
seem to have reduced the amount of antagonism within the Northern bloc. However, 
detente must take into account the rights and interests of the developing countries. 
The interests of the third world were not furthered by agreements between the 
powerful countries of the North, which had merely led to a balance of nuclear 
terror and the rec ion of spheres of influence. 

25. In view of that situation, the ial Committee on Peace-keeping Operations 
could not succeed in carrying out its task if it confined its efforts to troop 
disengagement and the positioning of observer troops. That would lead only to 
the continuation of an eternal vicious circle, as the causes of the conflicts 
remained. The Special Com~ittee should deal with the causes and try to create 
the basis for lasting peace. His delegation did, however, feel that peace-keeping 
operations were necessary and could create conditions which might bring about 
peace. 

26. As regards the report of the ial Committee, his delegation noted t~at it 
sought to the Security Council new prerogatives. In that connexion, he 
wondered what success the Council could have in maintaining international peace 
and security in view of the abuse of the veto power by certain major Powers, which 
had prevented numerous decisions from being put into effect. That situation was 
not surprising in view of the interests which those countries had all over the 
world. It would be utopian to expect the United States not to veto resolutions 
censuring the Zionist entity or recognizing the rights of the Palestinian 
ueorle in view of the fact that the United States provided the arms that e:1ctbled 
the Zionist entity to carry out its racist designs. The same applied to 
resolutions against South Africa, which the United States opposed because of its 
extensive investments in that country. It must therefore be recognized that the 
Security Council was hampered in its actions and could not take decisive measures. 

Accordingly, he felt that the General Assembly should have the power to take 
swift action if the Security Council was unable to do so, provided that action 
was also taken to eliminate the causes of the conflicts in question. If that 
called for amending the Charter, then his delegation would favour such ; amendment. 
rl't1e United Nations Charter reflected the conditions that had existed in ; ; the 
worLl of 1976, which was reflected in the present General Assembly, was a vastly 
different one. The should not be permitted to control the present. 

As regards the guidelines for peace-keeping operations, he felt that agreement 
on the matter would be a difficult task in view of the opposing interests of groups 
which '.,rere at present even more in conflict than before. His delee;ation would 
favour enlarging the membership of the Special Committee on Peace-keeping Operations 
and its Working Group on the basis of equitable geographical representation. 

I • .. 



A/SPC/3l/SR.34 
English 
Page 8 

29. Mr. PINIES (Spain) sail that his country had always attached great importance 
to United Nations peace-keeping operations and to the work of the Special 
Committee, of which it was ~member. His delegation's position on the basic issues 
involved in peace-keeping 09erations could be found in the statement which he h~d 
made in the Special Committee on 27 April 1965 (A/AC.l2l/PV.4). On that occasion, 
he had stated that the action taken by international forces under United Nations 
auspices could be grouped i3to two very different categories. On the one hand, 
there was enforcernent action to deal with threats to the peace, breaches of the 
peace and acts of aggression. On the other, there were peace-keeping operations, 
which had grown out of the Organization 1 s efforts to fulfil its constitutional 
objectives. Enforcement or sanctioning action was a basic element of the system of 
collective security provided for in the Charter, while peace-keeping operations 
were closer to preventive policing action than to repressive military action. The 
distinction between the two kinds of action was fundamental and had a number of 
extremely important legal implications. 

30. While enforcement action was based on Chapter VII of the Charter, peace
keeping operations had their legal basis in Chapter I, particularly Articles l (l) 
and (4) and 2 (5). He therefore wished to reiterate that both the Security Council 
and the General Assembly were competent to decide on or recommend peace-keeping 
operations. Although the Ccuncil had primary responsibility for peace keeping and 
acted on the basis of decisions adopted by its members, its authority was not 
exclusive, for the General Assembly could also recommend measures whenever the 
Council was unable to act. 

31 Under Article 10 of the Charter, the General Assembly could discuss any 
questions or matters within the scope of the Charter. Under Article 11, it could 
consider the general principles of co-operation in the maintenance of international 
peace and security and could make recommendations with regard to such principles to 
the Members or to the Security Council or to both. Furthermore, it could discuss 
any questions relating to the maintenancE~ of international peace and security and 
make recommendations with regard to such qkestions. 

32. As a result, some peace-keeping operations had been carried out on the basis 
of resolutions of the Gene:r al Assembly and not of the Security Council. Yet, 
article l, paragraph 1, of the draft articles contained in the annex to the report 
of the Special Committee OYerlooked the competence of the General Assembly and 
seemed to confer exclusive powers on the Security Council. In stating that the 
Security Cmmcil had authority over peace-keeping operations, that paragraph 
reflected the views of the authors of the draft articles, if accepted, :Lt would 
make it necessary to amend the Charter, a task which did not come within the 
mandate of the Special Com1nittee on Peace-keeping Operations. 

33. Article 1 was extremely important, and the philosophy behind it was reflec:ted 
in all the draft articles drawn up by the li~orking Group. For the reasons he had 
stated, his delegation could not accept the present wording of article 1, 
particularly that of paragraph 1, which, as the Working Group itself had 
acknowledged, had not met vith any measure of agreement. 

I . ... 



A/SPC/3l/SR.34 
English 
Page 9 

(Mr. Pinies. Spain) 

34. His delegation was in favour of renewing the mandate of the Special Committee 
and hoped that it would meet more frequently in the coming year in order to examine 
in detail the report and the draft articles submitted to it by the Working Group. 
At those future meetings, his delegation would give its views on other questions 
suc.:1 as financing, which it considered fundamental to the consideration of 
pea~e-keeping operations. His delegation wished to commend the Working Group on 
its drafting of Working Document No. 3, which represented significant progress 
towards the drafting of guidelines even though there was, of course, still much to 
be done. 

35. Mr. MONACO-SORGE (Italy) welcomed the step forward represented by the work 
done by the Special Committee and its Working Group in 1976. His Government's views 
on the question of guidelines for peace-keeping operations were well known, and the 
specific proposals submitted by it in that connexion appeared on pages 19 and 20 
of document A/31/337. 

36. Comparison of the present report with that of the previous year clearly 
derwnstrated the progress which had been made in establishing guidelines. The 
cuirent report also contained interesting proposals that had been made on specific 
questions related to the practical implementation of peace-keeping operations. His 
delegation had been among the first to suggest that such proposals should be 
annexed to the report in extenso. 

37. As far as the new draft articles were concerned, a high degree of flexibility 
waf. required for article 1, 1-l'hich dealt with the authority of the Security Council 
oV~!r peace-keeping operations. If the Council and the Secretary-General were to be 
ab1e to deal with the specific circumstances of each operation, then the concept 
of "supervision" was more appropriate for the primary responsibility of the 
Security Council than was that of "directionn of United Nations peace-keeping 
op(:rations. 

38 At the same time, his delegation believed that the idea of establishing a 
sul)sidiary organ of the Security Council under Article 29 of the Charter deserved 
thorough consideration, since such an organ could give attention to the 
operational aspects of the activities of United Nations forces and to improving 
their effectiveness. Its establishment need not depend on the actual completion of 
th·~ guidelines, for article 4 of the draft 2-rticles offered a useful basis for the 
el:1boration of a juridical framework for its functioning. However, a rather 
fL:xible approach must be adopted in establishing legal rules for that organ if its 
effectiveness was not to be reduced by an excessively close tie to the Security 
Co1ncil. In particular, it should work in the closest co-operation with the 
Se~retary-General. There had been little time to develop or discuss such an 
approach, but he hoped it would be possible to deal with it at the next session of 
th= Special Committee. 

39. In 1975, his delegation had stressed the need to improve the working methods 
of the Working Group, and it therefore welcomed the over-all approach which had now 
been adopted by the Special Committee and the Working Group. Members of the 

I . .. 



A/SPC/::11 . .SR. 
ish 

Page 10 

Mr. Mon,aco"--Sorge, Italy) 

Special Committee who did r.ot belong to the Working Group had been permitted to 
express their views and ta.ke part in the work of the Group, thus establishing 
close contacts among all mEmbers of the Special Committee. That approach had 
encouraged progress and shculd therefore be followed in the coming year. He hoped 
that the nandate of the SpEcial Committee and its Working Group would be extended. 

40. Hr. SURYOKOSUMO (Indonesia) welcomed the progress that had been made in the 
work of the Special Committee over the past year. He hoped that the Committee 
would make further efforts so that it could reach agreement on the main problems 
involved and fulfil its mandate. 

41. Because the Charter did not contain specific prov1s1ons concerning peace
keeping operations and because the General Assembly and the Security Council, as 
the bodies entrusted with maintaining peace, had not established any guidelines in 
that connexion, it was up t::> States ?1Iembers of the United Nations to establish 
the constitutional, legal and financial structure for such operations. Agreement 
had to be reached on a number of important points, including the establishment of 
an organ to deal with practical matters :i.nvol ved in each peace-keeping operatio~1 
organized by the United Nations. 

42. His delegation had some difficulty in understanding the position of 
pre-eminence assigned to th~ Security Co~ncil in several of the draft articles 
contained in the report. If the Council failed to exercise its peace~keeping 
responsibilities because of a lack of political consensus, General Assembly 
authorization of peace--keepi.ng activities was necessary and desirable. In such 
circumstances, peace-keepin;,; operations should be subject to the directives of a 
special committee of the Ge.1eral Assembly consisting primarily of those countries 
which contributed contingen:s or personnel, but with provision for wider political 
and geographical rer:.resenta~ion. The General Assembly and the Secretary-General 
could also call the attention of the Security Council to the need to initiate 
peace-keeping operations in accordance with Articles ll and 99 of the Charter. 

43. His delegation was als•) concerned at the subordinate position accorded to ·:he 
Secretary-General in the dr.3.ft articles. As the chief administrative officer o:f 
the United Nations, the Sec ~etary-General should bear responsibility for the 
administ:·ati ve and logistic;:J.l support of the peace-keeping forces. In addition, 
as the "executing agent' 1

, h·~ should play a part in the conduct of peace-Keeping 
operations and enjoy discre-~ionary authority. He should also have some 
responsibility for day-to-day operations, including the making of urgent 
decisions, :::'or exr;erience had shown that decisions must be communicated ·to field 
commanders ui thin the short•~st possible time. 

44. In laying down general principles and guidelines for peace-keeping operations, 
the following additional faetors should be taken into consideration: First of all, 
the formulation of the peac<~-keeping force's mandate was vi tal. The mandate should 
be open-ended so as to allou the force some freedom to deal with unforeseen 
developments. Second, the use of force and freedom of movement were essential to 
the implement at ion of the force 1 s mandate. However, the use of force should be 
essentially non-coercive. ::n order for peace-keeping forces to function as 

I . ... 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 

11 

(Hr. Suryokosumo, Indonesia) 

integrated, efficient military units, it >·ras essential to secure freedom of 
movement for each unit, irrespective of nationality. Third, as regards 
authorization and control of operations, the role of the Security Council must not 
be seen as exclusive and the General Assembly's peace-keeping role in the event of 
an impasse in the Council would have to be defined. In that connexion, his 
delegation welcomed the proposal to establish a .~ ttee under Article 29 of the 
Charter to direct individual peace-keeping activities. Fourth, the principle 
should be recognized that national contingents were placed under the authority 
of' the Force Commander in respect of operations and logistics but remained under 
their own commanders in matters relating to jurisdiction, personnel, etc. Fifth, 
if a contributing State objected to the interpretation and execution of the 
o:ciginal mandate, if formal changes were made in the mandate or if a national 
en.ergency arose, that would constitute grounds for the withdrawal of a national 
ccntineent from an ongoing force. Sixth, the size of the peace-keeping force 
should be progressively reduced after a short initial period in order to reduce 
costs and increase the emphasis on peace keeping. 

45. Mr. ROSU (Romania) said that his delegation attached great importance to the 
fc·rmulation of guidelines for United Nations peace-keeping operations and to the 
vital role played by the United Nations peace-keeping missions in the Middle East 
ar.d Cyprus in creating an appropriate climate for negotiations. 'I'he experience 
ga.ined from the activities of UNEF and UNDOF could help the Special Committee to 
fulfil its mandate. 

46. His delegation welcomed the relative progress made by the Special Cow.mittee in 
tlte past year. The work done in the course of the year provided a useful basis for 
future efforts to elaborate guidelines for peace-keeping operations, and he was 
optimistic that the spirit of accommodation prevailing both in the Working Group 
artd in the Special Committee would help the Committee to fulfil its mandate at an 
early date. In order to speed up the work of the Committee, more meetings should 
be scheduled for 1977 to take place outside the dates set for the Committee 1 s 
m~xt session. 

4r(. While his delegation agreed that the main consultations should be carried out 
in the \>larking Group, it believed that the Committee should devote more time to 
negotiations and direct the work of the Working Group more actively. 

4B. It was high time that agreement was reached on the remaining outstanding 
iHsues so as to enhance the capacity of the United Nations to prevent military 
conflict. Agreements should be worked out with the participation of all Member 
States who were willing to make a contribution to the work of the Special 
Committee. The 1-/orking Group should therefore c:c-operc:.te with members of the 
Special Committee and other Member States which wished to contribute to its work. 
Indeed, the Working Group should be open to all States members of the Special 
Committee, and the latter should remain the main forum for working out the 
recommendations called for by the General Assembly. Similarly, all Member States 
should have a right to participate in United Nations military or peace-keeping 

I ... 



A/SPC/31/SR. 34 
English 

12 

(i;Ir. Rosu, Romania) 

forces, and the sending of United Nations forces to the territory of any country 
and also the national composi·~ion of those forces should have the consent of the 
State concerned. 

49. His delegation appreciat~d the proposals made by other delegations during the 
current debate. It was in faiTour of extending the mandate of the Special Committee, 
for it believed that the latt =r could and should make substantive progress towards 
completing its work by the thirty-second session of the General Assembly. 

50. I1r. JACOVIDES (Cyprus) s!:tid that the item under consideration fell within the 
ambit of the wider question of the maintenance of international peace and security 
through the United Nations. It ought therefore to be one of the most important 
items of the General Assembly's work. 

The primary objective of the United Nations - maintaining peace in the world -
could, ideally, be achieved through the creation of a permanent United Nations 
peace-keeping force recruited, organized ~td financed by the Organization and owing 
allegiance to it. His delegation favoured such an approach even though it 
recognized that that could only be a long-term objective and that there was a 
great distance between what was ideally de~;irable and what was practically possible. 
Even without such an innovative and ambitious undertaking, which would require 
amending the Charter, there was, under the present Charter, a complete and 
apparently watertight system of collective security. Chapters VI and VII of the 
Charter made detailed provision for the pacific settlement of international 
disputes. The Charter therefore provided i;he complete answer to the over-all 
objective of maintaining and restoring international peace and security. Yet, in 
many instances that objectivE was not achieved. 'rhe operation of the veto 
provision in Article 27 ( 3) c f the Charter was often mentioned as one explanation 
for the paralysis of the system in those instances, and there could be no doubt 
that that had often been the case. There 1.;rere, nevertheless, other cases in which 
the veto could not be blamed, because resolutions which had been adopted 

by the Security Coulcil had not been implemented. As the Secretary~. 
General had pointed out in tr e introduction to his report on the work of the 
Organization, the responsibilities of Governments did not cease when a resolution 
of the Security Council was adopted and those resolutions usually required 
determined action by GovernmE:nts, in addition to the ies directly concerned, 
if they were to be translate<\ into reality (A/31/l/ Add.l, p. 10). The States to 
which such a resolution was c~irected were under a legal obligation to carry out 
such decisions. Article 25 of the Charter was explicit and unambiguous in that 
regard, and, if any ground for misinterpretation existed, it had been removed by 
the InternationoJ Court of Justice in its advisory opinion of 21 June 1971 on the 
question of Namibia. 

52. At the same time, in ca:;e of failure to comply with such a decision by the 
State to which the resolution was directed, the Security Council was duty bound to 
take appropriate measures, including measures of enfcrcerc:ent under Chapte:r- VII, ln 
order to see to it that its <)Wll resolution was implemented. Parallel t;o any such 
action by the Security Council itself, individual members of that body, and 
especially the permanent memJers which had voted for such a resolution, had the 

I • • • 



A/SFC/31/SR.34 
English 
Page 13 

(Mr. Jacovides, Cyprus) 

responsibility of acting in such a manner as to ensure compliance with the 
dec:~sion taken. That responsibility was extended to the full membership of the 
United Nations by Article 2 ( 5) of the ::barter. It was only thus that the system 
of eollective security under the Charter could be made to work in practice, 
especially in cases in which the veto provision had not prevented the adoption 
of the relevant resolution. Failure to act to implement a resolution not only 
shoved a lack of logical consistency but also contributed to discrediting and 
further weakening the United Nations system of collective security. 

53. A case in point was Security Council resolution 365 (1974), which had been 
adopted by consensus following the 1971~ Turkish invasion of Cyprus. The tragic 
fact - tragic for the people of Cyprus and for the United Nations - was that two 
years later none of the provisions of that resolution had been implemented and 
nothing effective had been done by the Security Council or its members to ensure 
compliance with it. As long as such a glaring and incontestable situation of 
grm•s violation of the most basic rules of international law and human rights 
cont;inued, there could not be much hope for an effective and reliable security 
syst.em under the Charter in which Stab::s, especially those that were weak, small 
and non-aligned, could place their trust and confidence. It was a source of some 
solLce that, at the suggestion of his delegation, the Fifth Conference of Heads 
of r:tate or Government of Non-Aligned Countries had unanimously urged the full 
application of the Charter provisions relating to the maintenance of international 
peace and security and also the effective discharge of the functions of the 
Sec1crity Council through implementation of its decisions. Peace-keeping by consent 
of the type now being considered had evolved as a pragmatic substitute for the 
com!'rehensive and watertight system envisaged by the Charter for particular 
situations where the circumstances permitted it. Despite its many limitations, 
including financial ones, it had proved time and again its value in an imperfect 
worJd. 

54. With regard to the report of the Special Committee on Peace-keeping Operations 
(A/~1/337), his delegation would have been happier if the results of its work had 
beer. more substantive. It appreciated the complexity and delicacy of the problems 
invclved and took some consolation from the progress reflected in the adoption of 
article 4 of the draft guidelines. His delegation particularly noted and welcomed 
the references in paragraphs 3 and 6 of that article to the effect that meetings 
of the Security Council committee could be convened by the representative of the 
country where the peace-keeping operation was conducted and that that representative 
couJd, as a rule, attend the meetings of the committee and participate in its 
discussions. 

55. His delegation hoped that circumstances would permit the Special Committee to 
proceed with its work in a more productive and comprehensive manner in view of the 
magnitude and significance of its mandate. Experience had shown that where there 
was a will, there way a way. vfuenever the necessary political, strategic and 
financial factors existed in a given situation, peace-keeping operations had come 
into being irrespective of doctrinal differences in order to meet the needs of the 

situation. A better system of financing, preferably based on collective 

I 

I ' • • 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 
Page 14 

(Mr. Jacovides, Cyprus) 

responsibility, broader geoeraphical representation on the forces and clearer lines 
of authority were all questions to which the Special Committee's attention might 
usefully be directed. While the Security Council's authority over peace-keeping 
operations was paramount, tte key to a breakthrough lay in a proper balance being 
struck between policy contrcl and operational management, always bearing in mind 
that the guidelines to be agreed upon should not be such as to frustrate the 
practical requirements in tbe field. 

56. The size of the peace-keeping force in every particular case should be such as 
to be effective. The force should under no circumstances be subject to attack by 
national forces and should not be hindered by anyone in the legitimate exercise of 
the functions assigned to it by the Security Council. Should that occur, it would 
be incumbent upon the Council to take all appropriate additional steps to protect 
the safety of the troops ilJ.VOlved and to en:::ure the proper carrying out of their 
mandate. Another very important factor was that peace-keeping forces should at 
all times respect the authority of the Government and the sovereignty and 
independence of the State in whose territory they operated and should act in strict 
accordance with the United Nations resolutions under which they were set up. It 
should always be remembered that such forces operated with the consent of the 
Government of the State concerned. 

57. His delegation supported all efforts to achieve greater preparedness for the 
carrying out of peace-keeping operations and welcomed the suggestions made by a 
number of interested States regarding the holding of seminars for training military 
ru1d civilian personnel, the preparation of manuals and similar activities of a 
practical nature, It paid a tribute to those States and org~nizations which had 
taken initiatives in that regard. 

58. Two other major factors should be borne in mind when considering United 
Nations peace-keeping operations. Firstly, peace keeping was not an end in itself. 
It was a temporary measure to provide breathing space, and it should help to create 
an atmosphere in which meaningful negotiations could be freely conducted with a 
view to removing the causes of the conflict. It took more than one party to create 
conditions in which such neg~tiations could be conducted fruitfully, and where one 
party was not willing to do so the result was stalemate and an indefinitely 
protracted conflict. Secondly, United Nations peace-keeping operations were not 
carried out in a vacuum but invariably under United Nations resolutions which 
provided the framework and guidelines within which a just and peaceful solution was 
to be found in accordance with the Charter. If such resolutions were duly 
implemented, the problem would no longer exist. Balance and impartiality were 
indeed commendable, but so, too, was strict adherence to the relevant United Nations 
resolutions which had brought the peace-keeping operation into existence. 

59. The United Nations Forc3 in Cyprus (t~FICYP) had been in operation with the 
ccnsent of the Government of Cyprus since 1964. The experience accumulated in that 
regard was no doubt of consilerable assistance to the Special Committee in carrying 
out its mandate, and in that connexion, he wished to pay a tribute to the 
Secretary-·GE:neral and his as 3ociates, both in New York and in Cyprus, to the States 

I . .. 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 
Page 15 

(Mr. Jacovides~ Cyprus) 

which had generously con-Lriou:ted truuvs H.nd f'inances, to the officers and men lvho 
hac· served ".rith the Force and to the Sect:rlty Council , all of '..rhich had r.cu.de 
th1ct op<"raticn possible in the inter<-:sts of peace 'n Cyorus and of internaticnc:l 
peace in t}~e S1JrroL·ncling volatile: region. Even though t:ne Uni ter: Hat ions had r:;ot 
fot.nd it possible to avert the 'Turkish invasion of 1974, UNFICYP had continued to 
function and to discharge its mandate by adJusting to the substant.ially different 
ci! cumstances which the in vas ion had brought about. As a result, howev-er, of the 
indiscriminate napalm bombing carried out by the Turkish Air Force in the course 
of the military operations in 1974, UNFICYP had suffered a number of casualties 
and Security Council resolution 359 (1974) had been adopted. Despite the call r,,r 
full co--operation made in the General Assembly and Security Council resolutions, 
there had been an increasing and disquieting n1xmber of instances of lack of 
co-ordination by the invasions forces toward UNFICYP, both in denying it freeclum 
of movement and in failing to comply with the specific undertakings with respect 
to UNFICYP's role in the Turkish-occupied area of Cyprus, as contained in the 
Vienna agreement of 2 August 1975 for the proteetion of the enc1aved indip;enous 
Greek Cypriot population. 

60. He wished to reiterate his delegation's full support for the effort being 
mad·~ by the Special Committee on Peace-keeping Operations. When it had 
suc.::essfully concluded its work, it would have filled a vacuum and i-rould place 
fut'lre peace-keeping operations on a more systematic and orderly basis, thus 
avoiding the shortcomings of the past. The painful experience which Cyprus was 
still suffering made it clear that United Nations peace-keeping was not sufficient 
in itself. It could be made altogether unnecessary if the collective security 
sys-l:;em envisaged by the Charter was made effect-ive. Even when an operation became 
una'roidable because of failure to uphold that system, such an operation had to bo 
accompanied by a genuine effort, on the part of all States Members of the Uni tee] 
Nat:.ons, individually and collectively, to implement the relevant United Nations 
resolutions. The Charter provided the machinery for such implementation through 
enforcement measures when other efforts had failed to overcome the recalcitrance 
of one State. Perhaps only in that way could a solution be found which was just 
and viable and in accordance with the Charter. 

61. Mr. SHEFI (Israel), speaking in exercise of his right of reply, said that 
the statement made by the representative of the Libyan Arab Republic was a classic 
exarr,ple of hypocrisy. The Libyan Arab Republic had no right whatsoever to speak 
on the subject of peace-keeping operations when all were vell acquainted with the 
Libyan record of stirring up trouble throughout the world. Its contribution to 
the maintenance of international peace and security lay mainly in contributing 
large sums of money to subversive organizations which were prepared to accept 
Libyan largesse. 

62. An article by a British writer on international affairs~ published in the 
1 September issue of News day, stated as follows: 

"Libya has not conspired to overthrow the Algerian Government in the past 
six months, nor is it forcibly occupying any Algerian territory. There is nothing 
remarkable in that statement, except that Algeria is the only one of Libya's six 
neighbours for whom it is true. 

I . .. 



A/SPC/31/SR.34 
English 

16 

(Mr. Shefi, Israel) 

"In the month of March alone, Egypt, Niger and Tunisia were the targets of 
Libyan-backed operations aimed at the violent coercion or overthrow of their 
Governments. In July it was Sudan's turn, when President Gaafer al Numeiri barely 
survived the armed rising by a thousand Libyan-trained insurrectionaries that 
wrecked much of central Khartoum. As for Chad, it is still futilely protesting 
Libya's annexation of 27~000 square miles of its territory in May 1975 and fighting 
an interminable war against the Frolinat guerrillas in the north who get most of 
their outside support from L:ibya. 

"Just this Sunday, Egyptian troops were massing on the Libyan border in yet 
another sabre-rattling incident. The show of force vas the latest in the 
three-year-old war of nerves between Libyan leader Col. Moammar Khadafy and 
Egypt's President Anwar Sadai. 

"Col. Khadafy continues to send arms and money to the Eritrean guerrillas in 
Ethiopia and to the Muslim SE~paratists of the southern Philippines. Libya was 
clearly deeply involved in the June hijacking of an Air France plane which ended 
with the Israeli raid on EntE~bbe." 

63. Another more specific contribution of the Libyan Arab Republic to peace-keeping 
operations was described recently by news agencies. Thus, the world was told on 
6 July 1976 that: 

"Sudanese and Libyan troops in the joint Arab 'peace-keeping' force in Lebanon 
were last night reported to ltave clashed in Beirut against the background of the 
weekend abort;ive coup attemp1; in Sudan. 

"The Sudanese and Libyan troops were locked in clashes at Beirut airport and 
other locations in the Lebanese capital. The radio said that Syrian troops were 
trying to separate them." 

64. If that was the way in uhich the Libyan Arab Republic understood its peace
keeping role, then its repre:;entative in the Special Political Committee could 
have no standing in a debate on the item under consideration. 

65. Mr. IBRAHIM (Libyan Arab Republic), speaking in exercise of his right of reply, 
said that despite ·the fact thrct the Special Political Committee had already 
concluded its consideration <)f the items in the United Nations Relief and ·\>larks 
Agency for Palestine Refugee:~ in the Near East and the report of the Special 
Committee to Investigate Isr:~.eli Practices Affecting the Human Rights of the 
Population of the Occupied T·~rritories, the representative of the Zionist entity 
sought to block the course of the Committee's work. The statement just made by 
that representative was supp)rtive of what he, the representative of the Libyan 
Arab Republic, had stated, b ~cause, while the representative of the Zionist entity 
spoke of terrorism, he did nJt differentiate between people who were fighting to 
achieve their independence a~d those who were real terrorists. He had repeated 
Zionist propaganda published in the New York press, the Jerusalem Post and elsewhere. 

I . .. 



A/SPC/ 31/SR . 34 
English 
Page 17 

(Mr. Ibrahim, Libyan Arab Republic) 

66 . All members of the international community had asked themselves why there was 
a conflict between t he Zionists and the Ar abs and why the Zionists had r efused to 
wi t hdraw f r om the occupied territories . Zionism was impeding the work of the 
United Nations , and the conflict that existed was between the Zionists and all 
peace-loving and brother ly peoples thr oughout the wor ld. In 1967 and 1968, both 
Mr . Abba Eban and Mr . Yigal Allon had boasted that Israel's foreign policy was 
simple , i . e . I sr ael was determined never to withdraw; they had stated that the 
Je'II'S now had national sover eignty, that they were stronger than they had 
been in 1600 years and that their State was a means of applying basic Zionist 
ideology . 

67 . ~~ . SEMICHI (Algeria) said that, in the statement made in exercise of the 
right of reply, it had been asserted that his country was threatened by its 
neighbours . He wished t o inform member s of the Committee that Algeria maintained 
good- neighbourly relations with the Libyan Ar ab Republi c . 

The meeting r ose at 1.20 p .m. 




